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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON
AT SEATTLE
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SHERA PAGLINAWAN and STUART
OSWALD individually and on behalf of all
athers similarly situated,

Plaintiffs, .

Vs,

JAMES FREY and JANE DOE FREY,
individually and the marital community
comprised thereof; NAN A.
TALESE/DOUBLEDAY a division of
RANDOM HOUSE, INC. a New York
corporation,

Defendants.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT - {

No.
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Plaintiffs, Shera Paglinawan and Stuart Oswald, by their undersigned attorneys, bring this
civil action for damages and declaratory relief on behalf of themselves and all others similarly

situated against the above-named Defendanis and complain and allege as follows:

MYERS & COMPANY, P.LL.C.
1809 SEvErTH AVENUE, SUME 700
SEATILE, WASHINGION 98 101
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L NATURE OF ACTION
1.E  Plaintiffs bring this action as a Class Action pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal
Ruies of Civil Procedure on behalf of all persons who purchased the novel A Million Littie

Pieces from a seller {ocated in the State of Washington or who read the book and are residents of

the State of Washington.

1.2 A Million Little Pieces was written by Mr. James Frey and published and
distributed by Nan A. Talese/Doubleday, a subsidiary of Random Hodse, Inc.

L3 A Million Little Pieces was purportedly a memoir and was advertised and

marketed as such by Nan A. Talese/Doubleday. The book was written in the first person and
claimed to tell the true story of James Frey, chronicling Mr. Frey’s struggles with crime, alcohol
and drug addiction.

14  Inreality, Mr. Frey fabricated farge portions of A Miflion Little Pieces and Nan

A. Talese/Doubleday was aware of these fabrications.

1.5 Asaesult of the Defendants’ actions the Plaintiffs have suffered economic
damage and emotional distress.

IL PARTIES

2.1  Plaintiff Shera Paglinawan has at all material times been a resident of Seattle,
Washington.

2.2 Plaintiff Stuart Oswald has at all material times been a resident of Seaitle,
Washington.

2.3 Defendant James Frey is, upon information and belief, a resident of New York,

24  Defendant Nan Talese A. Talese/Doubleday is a business subsidiary of Random

House, a New York corporation.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT -2 MYERS & COMPANY, PLLC.
' : o $809 SEVENTH AVENTE, SUITE 700

SEATILE, WASHINGTON 9810§
TELEPHONE (206 398-1 188




10

11

12

13

14

15 .

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

24

Case 1:06-cv-00669-RJH  Document 5-10  Filed 02/28/2006  Page 4 of 4]
Case 2:06-cv-00099-RSM  Document 1-1  Filed 01/19/2006 Page 3 of 10

I JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3.1 Subject matter jurisdiction is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1332(a)(1) because the
Plaintiffs and Defendants are citizens of different states and the amount in controversy exceeds
$75,000.00. This court has suppleméntal jurisdiction over the state faw claims pursuant to 28
U.S.C. § 1367.

3.2 Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(a) because
the Defendants systematically and continuously sold their product within this district and
Defendants transact business within this district.

IV. CLASS ACTION ALLEGATION

4.1 Plaintiffs bring this suit as a class action pursuant to Rules 23(a), (b)(1), bX2)
and (b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, on behalf of themselves and a Plaintiff Class
(the “Class™) composed of all petsons who purchased A Million Little Pieces by James Frey
from a vendor in the Statf; of Washington and on behalf of all residents of the State of
Washington who have read A Million Little Pieces. Plaintiffs reserve the right to modify this
class definition prior to moving for class certification.

4.2 This action has been brought and may be properly maintained as a class action
pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure for the following reasons:

a. " The Class is ascertainable and there is a well-defined community of
interest among the members of the Class:

b. Membership in the Class is so numerous as to make it impractical to bring
all Class meinbers before the Court. The identity and exact number of Class members is

unknown but is estimated to be at least in the thousands considering the fact that A Million Little

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT - 3 .. MUSSECOMPANGRLLC
. . - : * 1809 SEVENTH AVenUg, SUE 7007 -

SEATTLE, WASHINGTON S8I01
TELEPGHONE (206) 398-1 128
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M ﬁas sold ov¢.3|‘~~3'.5 nﬁi[ior; copies, Plain-t;ﬁ's: i)é[i;\;e that membcrs of th; Cl:;.ss can be ..
identified through Nan A. Talese/Doubleday and Random House’s sales records,

c. Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of those of other Class members, all of whom
have suffered harm due to Defendants’ uniform course of conduct.

d Plaintiffs are members of the Class.

e. There are numerous and substantial questions of law and fact common to
all of the members of the Class which control this litigation and predominate over any individual
issues pursuant to Rule 23(b)(3). The common issues include, but are not limited to, the
following:

i. Doe.s the Washington Consumer Protection Act Apply?

ii. Were Defendants’ représentations false?

ii. Were Defendants aware of the falsity of their representations?
iv. Was there a valid contract between the parties?

v, Were Plaintiffs and Class members damaged?

f. These and other questions of law or fact which are common to the
members of the Class predominate over any questions affecting only individual members of the
Class;

g Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Class in that
Plaintiffs have no interests that are antagonistic to other members of the Class and have retained
counsel competent in the prosecution of c[ags acttons to represent themselves and the Class;

h. Without a class action, the Class will continue to s_ut’fer damage,
Defendants’ violations of the law or laws will confinue without remedy, and Defendants will
continue t.o enjoy the fruits ard proceeds of their unlawful misconduct;

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT - 4- ' | MYBS&COMPANY,PLLC.
o ) L 1809 SEvENTH AVENUE, SUITE 704

SEATTLE, WASHEGTON 93401
TELEPHONE (206) 398-1188
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- i | G:ven ('i) the sul;s.tant'i.ve com.plexit& of ﬂli.S litigation; (i.i) the size ;f N
individu:.ﬂ Class ﬁembers’ cl‘;tims; and ('iii) the limitéd resoufoes of the Class members, few, if
any, Class members could afford to seek legal redress individually for the wrongs Defendants
have committed against them;

i This action will foster an orderly and expeditious administration of Class
claims, economies of time, effort and expense, and unifo.rmity of decision;

k Inferences and presumptions of materiality and refiance are available to
obtain class-wide determinations of those elemeants within the Class claims, as are accepted
methodologies for class-wide proof of damages; alternatively, upon adjudication of Defendants’
common liability, the Court can efficiently determine the claims of the individual Class
members;

L This action presents no difficulty that would impede the Court’s
management of it as a class action, and a class action is the best (if not he only) available means
by which members of the Class-can seek legal redress for the harm caused them by Defendants.

m. In the absence of a class action, Defendants would be unjustly enriched
because they would be able to retain the benefits and firuits of their wrongful conduct.

43  The Claims in this case are also properly certifiable under applicable law.
V.  STATEMENT OF FACTS
5.1 In2002 James Frey presented a manuscript to Nan Talese, a publisher at Nan A.
Talese/Doubleday. This manuscript was in the form of a novel. This manuscript formed the

basis of A Million Littlc Pieces.

5.2 Ms. Talese informed Mr. Frey that Nan A. Talese/Doubleday would publish the

tanuscript if he recast the novel as a memoir.

JH CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT -5 - MYERS & COMPANY, PLL.C.

1809 SEVENTH AVENUE, SUITE 700
SEATILE, WASHINGTON 9810
TELEPHONE (206) 398-1188
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constitute a breach of contract.
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT - 6 MYERS & COMPANY, PLL.C.
- 1809 SEVENTH AVENUE, SUTTE 700
SEATILE, WASIONGTON 98101 -
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53 In 2003 Nan A, TalesefDoubleday publlshed A Ml[ltcm Little Pieces by James

Frey The book was purportedly a memoir and was advertised and marketed as such by Nan A.
Talese/Doubleday. The book was writteq in the first person and claimed to tell the true story of
James Frey, chronicling Mr. Frey’s struggles with crime, alcohol and drug addiction.

54 A Million Little Pieces has sold over 3.5 million copies to date.

3.5 In2004 Oprah Winfrey added A Million Little Piecés to her well knowa book

club.

5.6  Investigations have revealed that Mr. Frey fabricated large portions of A Million
Little Pieces. .

5.7  Plaintiff, Shera Paglinawan, received A Million Little Pieces as a gift from her
mother and began reading the book before news of the book’s falsity was disseminated.

5.8 Plaintiff, Stwart Oswald, purchased A Million Little Pieces in King County and

began reading the book before news.of the book’s falsity was disseminated.
59  Asaresult of the Defendants’ actions the Plaintiffs and other Class members have
suffered ecoromic damage.
VL. CAUSES OF ACTION
A. Breach of Contract
6.1  Plaintiffs reallege all prior allegations as though fully stated herein.

6.2  Plaiatiffs and Class members purchased and/or read A Million Little Pieces based

an the Defendants’ representations that it was a truthful memoir.

6.3  Defendants’ representations were false and its sales of A Millioa Little Pieces

TELEPHONE (206) 398-1138
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64 Asa result of the b:each Plamtlﬁ's and Class members suﬁ'ered damages whlch
may falrly and reasonably be cousidered as arising natum!ly ﬁom the breach or may reasonably
be supposed to have beea in the contemplation of the parties, at the time they made the contract,
as the probable result of the breach of it.

B. Unjust Enrichment

6.5  Plaintiffs reallege all prior allegations as though fully stated herein.

6.6  Defendants were and continue to be unjustly enriched by their false

representations as to the truthfulness of A Million Little Pieces in an amount to be proven at trial.
C. Negligent Misrepresentation
6.7  Plaintiffs reallege all prior aflegations as though fully stated herein.

6.8  Defendants owed Plaintiffs and Class members a duty o exercise reasonable care

in advertising the truthfulness of A Million Little Pieces.
6.9  Defendants provided false information to Plaintiffs and Class members relating to

the truthfulness of A Million Little Pieces.

6.10  Defendants breached their duty to Plaintiffs and other Class members by failing to
exercise reasonable care or competence in guaranteeing the truthfulness of A Million Little
Pieces.

6.11  Plaintiffs and Class members reasonably relied on the information provided by

Defendants regarding the truthfulness of A Million Little Pieces.

6.12  As a proximate cause of Defendants’ false representations Plaintiffs and other

Class members suffered damages in an amount to be proven at frial.

D. Intentional Misrepresentation (Deceit)
6.13  Plaintiffs reallege all prior allegations as though fully stated herein.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT - 7 ) MYERS & COMPANY, P.LL.C.
' . 1809 SEVENTH AVENUE, SUITE 700

SEATTLE, WASHRGTON 98101
TELEPHONE (206) 398-1188




[SR [Ru— [ [R—1 [SR—— [ JUSS |

[

10
1
12
13
14
Is
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

24

|

Case 1:06-cv-00669-RJH  Document 5-10  Filed 02/28/2006 Page 9 of 41
Case 2:06-cv-00099-RSM  Document 1-1.  Filed 01/19/2006 Page 8 of 10

6. 14 Defc;t{dmits mallde mb@mmti;@ ;)f féct ;céarciing ﬁc tr‘u-thﬁ:ln_t.ass of A
Million Little-Pieces for the purpose of inducing Plaintiffs and other Class members'k; purchﬁsc
and/or read the book.

6.15  Defendants knew or believed the representations referred to in the preceding
paragraph were false.

6.16  Plaintiffs and other class members reasonably relied on Defendants’ false
representations.

6.17 Asaresult of Defendants’ false representations Plaintiffs and other Class
members suffered damages in an amount to be proven at trial.

E. Washington Consumer Protection Act Violation — RCW 19.86, ef seq.

6.18  Plaintiffs realiege all prior allegations as though fully stated herein.

6.19  Atall times relevant to this action Washington had in effect RCW Ch. 19.86
prohibiting unfair or deceptive acts or practices in the conduct of business.

6.20 Defendants’ false claims regarding the truthfulness of A Million Little Pieces
constituted unfair or deceptive acts or practices in the conduct of trade or commerce.

6.21 Defendants’ acts or practices have the capacity to deccive a substantial portion of
the public and to affect the public interest.

6.22  Asaresult of Defendants’ unfair or deceptive acts or practices, Plaintiffs and

other Class members suffered injuries in an amount to be proven at trial.

F.  Declaratory Judgiiient

6.23  Plaintiffs reallege all prior allegations as though fully stated herein.

6.24  Plaintiffs and the Class, pursuant to Rule 57 of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure and 18 U.S.C. § 2201(a), hereby seek a declaratory judgment that Defendants’

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT - 8 MYERS & COMPANY, PLL.C.
. ’ S 1809 SEVENTH AVENUE, SURE 700

. SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98101
TELEPHONE (206) 393-1188
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conduct in misleading purchasers and rcaders of A Ml[hon Little Plecw violated thc \Vashmgton

Consumer Protection Act and breached their 1mp[1ed or express contract wnth purchasem and
readers of the book.
VII. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs and Class members request that the Court enter an order of
judgment against Defendants including the following:

A. Certification of the action as a class action pursuant to Rule 23(b)(2) of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure with respect to Plaintiffs’ claim for injunctive and declaratory
relief, and Rule 23(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure with respect to the claims for
damages, and appointment of Plaiﬁtiﬂ'z‘s as Class Representatives and their counsel of record as
Class Counsel;

B. A declaration that Defendants violated the Washington Consumer Protection Act;

C. A declaration that Defendants breached their explicit of implicit contract with

readers and purchasers of A Million Little Pieces.

D. Damages in the amount of monies paid for A Million Little Pieces.

E. Damages for the time spent by Plaintiffs and Class members rcadin-g A Million
Little Pieces.

F. Actual damages (including all general, special, incidental, and consequential
damages), statutory damages (including treble damages), and such other relief as provided by the
statutes cited herein;

G. Prejudgment and post-judgment interest on such monetary refief;

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT -9 . MYERS & COMPANY, PLLC.
T : t 1209 SEvrwm AVENUE, SUITET00 © °

SEATTLE, WAHRIGTON 98101
TeLEPHONE (206) 398-1 182
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H. Equitable relief in the form of restitution and/or disgorgement of ali unfawﬁ.tl or

iltegal pfoﬁté received by Defendaﬁts as a result of the unfair, unlawful and/or deceptive conduct

alleged herein;
L Other appropriate injunctive relief;
i3 The costs of bringing this suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees; and
K. Such other relief as this Court may deem just, equitable and proper.
DATED this 19% day of January, 2006.
MYERS & COMPANY, p.L.L.C.
Attorneys for Plaintiffs and Class members
By: __/s/ Michael David Myers
* Michael David Myers
WSBA No. 22486
Myers & Company, P.L.L.C.
1809 Seventh Avenue, Suite 700
Seattle, Washington 98101
Telephone: {206) 398-1188
Facsimile: (206) 400-1112
E-mail:mmyers@rmyers-company.com

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT - 10

MYERS & COMPANY, PLLC,
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SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 92101
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for cemoval is granted, check this box.

Remanded from Appelfate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded o the district coust for fisrther action. Use the date of remand as the filing date.
Reinstated or Reopened. (t.l} Check this box for cases reinstated or mopened in the district court. Use the reapening dafe as the filing dute.

Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred uader Titde 28 U.S.C. Scction 1404{a). Do not use this for within district transfers or multidistrict
litigation transfers.

Multidistrict Litigation. (6} Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.5.C. Section 1407. When this box
is checked, do rot check (5) ebove.

Appeal to District Judge from Magistrate Judgment, (7} Check this box for an appeal from 2 magistrate judge's decision.

VL CauscofAction. Report the civil statute dircctly related to the cause of action and give a bricf. description of the cause, Do not dite jurisdictional statutes
undess diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 -

rrerstty © Becf D:gocnpﬁon. Unaufhiorized reception of cable service
VIL Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place ag “X™ in this box ifyou are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.

Demand. In this space enter the dollzr smouat €in thousands of dollars) being demanded or indicate other demand such as a peeliminary injunction.
Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whother ar nota juey is being demanded.

VIL Related Cases. This section of the IS 44 is used 1o reference related pending cases if any. If there are related pending cascs, insert the docket numbers
and the corresponding judge aames for such cases.

Date and Attormey Signature, Date and siga the civil cover shieot
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Donna M To PaulaMcN@hotmail.com

| FeksonWAWDIOIMUSCOUR - pauta McNabbWAWDA9/IUSCOURTS@USCOURTS
01/2012006 11:24 AM bec

Subject Fw: Paglinawan, etal. v. Frey, etal.

Receipt # for case C06-0099RSM is: 320755, Sfiss.
~dj
— Forwarded by Donna M Jackson/WAWDA9USCOURTS on 01/20/2006 11:23 AM —
*Tianna Pak”™
<tpak@myers-company.com To <newcases.seattle@wawd.uscourts.gov>
>

oc

01A19/2606 04:32 PM .
’ Subject Paglinawan, etal. v. Frey, et al.

Dear Clerk of the Court:
Attached please find the following:

1) Class Action Complaint;
2) Summons to Defendant Frey;
3) Summons to Defendant Random House, Inc.

We ask that you please file the same aud let our office know if any filing fees are required. Thank
you for your assistance in this matter.

Tianna J. Pak

Myers & Company, p.Ll.c.

1809 Seventh Avenue, Siite 700
Seattle, Washington 98101
Telephone (206) 398-1188
Facsimile (206) 400-1117

This commurication is privete and confidential. Additionall, i8 constituctes o electronic communication within the meanéng of the
Electronic Cornmunizations Privacy Ax, 18USCZSIO.I&MM&MW&WWM@&M#&&
nmsqu.Tbirmmdmbuma&dmmyfdm&a!mdpfﬁﬂgdm_ﬁrﬁemkmqftbeiatmdzdm#rimfmdw@tbagme
mmmmmmm:mamgmmawmqmmmmﬂ. Ay retiew or
distribution by others is strictly probibited. I you are not the intended recipient please aontact the sender by return electronic pail and delote
and destray all eopies of this communication.




r

*

Case 1:06-cv-00669-RJH  Document 5-10 Filed 02/28/2006 Page 15 of 41
Case 2:06-cv-00099-RSM  Document 1-3 - Filed 01/19/2006 Page 20of 2

20K35.01.18 Class Action Complaint Federalpdf 2006.01.19.Summons. Frey.pdf  2606.01.19.Surmons R andom Hause pdf
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{ : UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT F , _ L E D
. A . SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF GHIO - o i
: WESTERN DIVISION '
) _ FEB 02 2006
Jill Giles on Behalf of Herself ) o JAMES BONINY, Clerk
3nd 3 CI335 of Persons Similarly Situated, ) L + -+ GINCINNATI, Offi0
2019 Edgecliff Point ) . .
Cincinnati, OH 45206 ) ) . : .
| ) .
Plaintif; ) caseNo._1:06CV0O58 4
V. ) - -
' ) Judge: WEBER r 9.
. ) '
James Frey )
Address Unknown }
New York, New York )
- ) CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
and ) JURY DE_MAN_D INDORSED HEREON
- - S S . ) ' T )
Randoni House, V.G. Inc. )
1745 Broadway )
New York, New York, 10019 )
)
AGENT FOR SERVICE )
OF PROCESS )
)
! . Katherine J Trager )
: 1745 Broadway )
New York, New York 10019 )
r . )
i - Defendants. )
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
; =009 AL TION COMPLAINT
1 Phaintiff Jill Giles, on her behalf and on behalf of similarly situated individuals, states as follows:
; ) SUMMARY

' L. . This is a Class Action brought by Jiil Giles, on behalf of herself and all other
_simitarly situated persons (the “Class™), who have purchased the book or media adaptation of “A

-Million Little Pieces” since its publication in April 2003. The Defendant Random House has,




[ S

reeamt

N [ R S R
g

Case 1:06-cv-00669-RJH  Document 5-10  Filed 02/28/2006  Page 18 of '{fl

since the book’s publica.ﬁc'm, marketed and distributed the book as a book of “non-fiction” or as a
“non-fiction memoir,” when in fact, the book, by the author’s own admission is replete with

fictional and concocted stories. In short, Plaintiff and the putative class of individuals she

 represents purchased this book under false pretenses due to being misled i)y the Defendant James '

. Frey and his publisher Random HOI;SC, Inc.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. Plaintiff realleges Paragraph 1 of this Class- Action Complaint and incorporates by
reference herein as if fully mwﬁ&en

3 Plaintiff Jill Giles (“Giles™) is and at all times meationed herein, a citizen and
tesident of the Co:..mty of Hamﬂton, State of Ohio. She had purchased her book from Joseph
Beth Bookstore in Hamﬂbn County, State of Ohio--

4. James Frey is and at all times mentioned herf;in, a citizen and resident of the state
of New York.

5. | Defendant Random House, Inc. (“Random House”) is a New-York corporation

which publishes and distributes reading material such as fiction and non-fiction books. Ranpdom

House’s principal place of business is in New York, and doing business here in the state of Ohio

as a distributor and seler of books and other such.mcdia adaptation of the book.

6. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to the Class Action Faimess
Act (“CAFA™), codified at 28 U.S.C. §1332(d), 1453, because: (1) the putative class action
consists of at least 100 proposed class members; (2) the citizenship of at least one putafive class
Qember._is different from that of befendant; and (3) the aggregate amount in controversy by the

claims of the plaintiffs and the proposed class members exceeds the sum or value of $5,000,000,

. exclusive of interest and costs.
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7. Vemue is proper in this District purswant to 28 US.C. §1391(a) bocause a
substantial part of ihe event-s or omissions giving rise to the cls;._im occurred here.
GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

8. Plaintiff realleges Paragraphs 1 through 7 of ﬂus Class Action Complaint and'
incorporates by reference hesein as if fully rewritten.

A In Aprl 2003 Raudom House published the book entitled “A Millicn'l Little
Pieces” authored by Defendant James Fn‘sy_(hcreinaﬁer referred to as the “Baok™), Random
House marketed the Book as a “memoir” and a work of “non-fiction.”

10.  Central to the Book is_the author’s assertions that ke was charged with assaulfing
an Otiio police officer with his car, with inciting a riot, with possession of crack cocaine and
felony drunk driving-charges that he wrote resultod i 2 three-month prison term.

1. An Internet Web-Site called the “Smoking Gun,” owned and operated by Court
TV, reported in January 2006 that most of those claims were false, and not bome out by police
records.

12, On January 26, 2006 Defendant Frey appeared on the syndicated television

program Oprah, and admitted that the assertions contained in herein of this Complaint were false,

- among other assertions contained in the Book.

13. At the time Frey wrate the Book, Frey knew that the assertions contained in the

Book were false. .
- 14.° At the time¢ Random House published the Book, it knew gr é_hould have known
that the assertions contained in herein of this Complaint were false, especially because the falsity

of these statements were bome out by public records, -
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ALLEGATIONS PERTAINING TO THE PLAINTIF -

15.  Plainfiff realieges Paragraphs 1 through 14 of this Class Action-Complaint and -
incorporates by {qfcrencc berein as if fully rewritten. ‘

16.  Plaintiff, Jill Giles, afier observing advertisements from Defendsnts in various
‘media, purchased the Book from stéph Beth Bookstore in Hamilton County; Ohio befieving
that the Book- was a non-fictional recousit of Defendant James Frey.

17.  After purchasing the book, Plaintiff read the book and continued fo belicve fhat
the book was a true recount of James Frey as continued media and advertisements about the book
continued.

18.  Central to the Book is the author’s assertions that he was charged with assaulting
an Ohio police officer with his car, with inciting a riot, with posscs;sion of crack cocaine and
felony drunk driving-charges that he wrote resulted in a three-month prison term.

19.  On or about January 26, 2066 Defendant Frey appeared on .the syndicated
television program Oprah, and admitted that the assertions contained in hesein of this Complaint
were false, among other assertions contained in the Book.

20. At the time Frey wrote the Book, Frey knew that the assertions contained in the
Book were false. - -

21. At the time Random House published the Book, it knew or should have known
that the assertions contained in herein of this Complaint were false, especially because the falsity
of these statements Weﬁ borne out by public records. ‘

22, Plaintiff had believed from statements and advertisements that the book was
accurate and non-fictional at the time of purchases and was indaced 0 puichase the book by such

assertions by and _ﬂ:rou@h the Defendants that the contents were non-fictional
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CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS '

23. 'Plaintiff realleges Paragraphs 1 through 22 of this Class Action Complaint and
incorporates by.reference herein as if folly rewritten - _
24. . Plaintiff brings this action_as a class action pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedute, on-behalf of a Class. The Class consists of:
All individuals who had purchased the book or other such media
titled “A Million Little Pieces” authored by Defendant James Frey
(bereinafter referied to as the “Book™) published and distributed
by Random House.
25.  The Class is also bereby divided into a sub(;iass:
All residents of the State of Ohio who had purchased the book or
other such media titled “A Million Little Pieces” authored by

Defendant James Frey (hereinafier refered to as the “Book™)
published and distributed by Random House (the “Subclass™).

26.  Excluded from the Class are the Defendants, any person or other entity employed
by, related to, or affiliated with Defendants, the judge assigned to this.case and his or her staff
and counsel of record for Plaintiff and Defendants.

27.  Plaintiff is a member of the Class she secks to represent and a member of the
Subclass. _ 7

28.  On information and bclief,- the Class and the Subclass are each believed to include
bundreds of persons who purchased this book or similar media. As a result, joinder of all Class
members in a single actio;l is impracticable.

29.  PlainGff brings this action on her own behalf and, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P.
Rules 23(2), (b)(1), (B)2) and (b)3), on behalf of a class of all individuals that purchased,
between April 2003 and January 16, 2006, tho Book. |

30. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is

impracticable. At this time, Plaintiff does not know the exact size of the Class, which can only
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be ascertained through’ discovery. However, Plaintiff believes that thonsands of present and

former purchasers of the Book purchased the Book based on the way in which Random Housé

fulsely marketed the Book. *

31.  There exist questions of faw and fact common to afl members of the Class, and

which predominate over any- questions which only affect individial Class members. These

common questions of law and fact include:

a.

What steps Random House took, prior to publishing the Book, the
truth or veracity of Defendant Frey’s assertions.

Whether Defendants breached a duty owed to the public to
ascertain the truthfulness of the contents before publishing and_
marketing. -

Whether Defendants® knew of the falsity of the statements at the

time they were published; and

‘Whether Defendants have engaged in a common scheme or course

of conduct in the markehng, sales and promotion of the Book
whereby Class Members have been induced to purchase the Book
and associated media by false representations or by fraudulent
representations

Whether as a n'asult of its representation, promises and agreements
contained in promotions and marketing, Defendants are mtoﬁped

from mﬂwﬁng and charging for the sale of the book and

associated media.
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" ‘f. | Wheﬂlcrsclhngﬂns book nﬁder deoepuvepmcuces has ungustly -
enriched Defendants. o o |
g Whether Defendants mientlonally have 'and continue to sell and
market the book as non-fictional
h Whether Defendants® conduct violates the Ohio Mpﬁvc Practice
and Consumer Protection Acts. _
L Wh&hcr the Class is entitled to damages.

32.  Since Plaintiff and all other members of the Class sustained injury as a result of
Defendants® wrongful acts, PlaintifPs claims are typical of the claims of the other members of
the Class.

33.  Plaintiff will fairly and adec‘[uatcly represent aﬁd protect the interests of the Class.
Plainfiff has retained able counsel with extensive experience in class action litigation.

34.  The interests of the Plaintiff are coincident with and not antagonistic to the
interests of the other Class members.

35.  Prosecution of separate actions by members -of the Class would create a sk of
inconsistent adjudications with respect to individual members of the Class which would establish
incompatible standards of conduct for Defendants.

36.  Furthermore, adjudications with respect to individual members of the Class
would, asa p-ractical mafter, be dispaositive of the inferests of the other members not parties to the
adjudications or substantially impair or impede their ability to protoct their interests.

v 37. __ Sincé joinder of all members of the Class is imptacticable, a class action is

- -superior to other available methods for the fair and efﬁcimt-aﬂiudi@aﬁ,bn of the controversy. .

Further, beéause the injuty suffered by the individual Class memibers may be relatively small, the _

éxpense and burden of individual litigation makes it impracticable for the Class members

7
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| mdmdually to red:r&cs the wrongs done to them. Them wi]l be no diiﬁculty in the management

of this action as a class action. -

COUNT I
(Mlsreprwentahon and Nondis NondlsclosureJames Frey)

38.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by ‘reference all of the allcgati-cms set
forth above. | .

3?. At all relevant times Defendant Frey, by his own admission, knew that the
assertions contmned herein of this Complamt were unirue, and knew that the Book was not a
non-fictional memoir. Nonetheless, he allowed and authorized his publisher Random House to
publish the Book as a non-fictional memoir, making these false assertions. _

40. Frey made the false assertions and agreed to reprea;ent the Book as a non-fictional
memoir, with the expectation that people would believe these falsehoods in hope that he would
personally profit by being able to sell the Book to ﬂ1<_= public and did profit from such sales of
over 2 wmillion copies

41.  Defendant Frey made such false assertions and represeniations t.o gain publicity to
increase sales and popularity of the Book.

42.  Plaintiff and the putative class did rely on the truth of false characterizations of
the Book asa non—ﬁcﬁ;)nal memoir when they purchased the Book.

43. Plamuff and the plﬁaﬁve class have been injured as a result of their reliance on
the above-described false_reprcsen_taﬁons.

COUNT I
(Negligent Misrepresentation-Random House and Frey) -

44.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by. ieference all of the allegations set .

forth above.
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45 Defendants Random House and Frey owed the Plamﬁﬂ' and the class a duty to -
maﬂcet the Book honestly Dcfendant Random House owed the Plaintiff and the class a duty to
invwﬁgéic the tmth of Frey’s assertions before it matkéted the Book as a non-fictional memoir.

46 Defendant breached hls duty by fa.tsely representing the Book as a non-fictional
memoir to Random House Random House breached its duty by failing to make a reasonable
invesligaﬁon into the truth or falsity of Frey’s assertions.

47. Dcfendant Random House profited from such sales of over 2 million copies

48. Defendant Random House nmde such false assertions and representations to gain
publicity to increase sales and popularity of the Book.

49. Asa cnnsequence of these breaches, the Plaintiff and the class suffered losses-and
damages.

50.  Defendants are personally liable to refund the entire purchase price of every Book
that has been sold to the Plainfiff and the class

COUNT I
(Fraud)

51.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference all of the allegations set
forth above.

52.  Defendants l:mowingly, ﬁau-dulently, and actively misrepresented in
advertisements and through the media that the Book entitled “A Million Little Pieces” authored
by Defendaut James Frey (hereinafier referred to as the “Book™) was a “memoir” and a work of
“non-fiction.”

53. . Centralto the Book is the author’s assertzons that he was charged with assaulﬂng

an Ohio "police oﬂﬁcer wzth his car, with inciting a not, with possessmn of crack cocaine and

- fqlony drunk driving-charges that he wrote resulted in a three-month prison term and knew at the
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time that he wrote the book that'most of those claims. were false, and not borne out-by police. .-

records.

54. _ Atthe time Frey wrote the Book, Frey knew that the assertions contained in the .. -

. Book were false.

55. At the time Random HO'llSe published the Book, it knew or should have known
that the assertions contained in herein of this Comiplairt were false, espécially because the falsity
of these statements were borne out by public records. '

56. ° Defendants frandulendly, with knowledgc and intent, stated that the Book was a.
non-fictional recount of experiences of James Frey. Therefore, Defendants, with knowledge and
intent issued fraudulent marketing and advertisements to Plaintiffs and the Class Members wheén
they knew or by due diligence should have known that such statements were false, hereinafter
referred to “Déceptive Practices.™

37.  Defendants had a duty to properly market and advertise the Book to the Plaintiff and
Class Members and not intentionally misrepresent the contents to the Plaintiff and Class Members.

58.  Defendants made the aforementioned misrepresentations with knowledge of the
falsity of said representation or with reckless disregard as to the truth of the representations.

'. 59.  Defendants acted with the intention of deceiving Plaintiffs and Class Members and
did in fact deceive Plaintifs and Class Members as o the conteats of the book.
60.  Defendants acted with the mtentxon of mducmg Plaintiff and Class Membets to rely

on the ﬁalse misiepresentation presented b}r Defendants as to the content of the Book to induce sales

ofﬂlebook_.

t_S 1.  Plainéiff and Class Members did in ﬁct zely on the ﬁ'audulent mxsxeprescntauo::s of

Defendants and purchased the Book and assocxated medla.

10
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62.. . Plaintiff’s and Class Members® reliance were justified. -
63. As a result of the false and fraudulent and intenfional misrepresentation by

. Defendanits, Plaintiff: and Class Meimbess. have been damaged and are entitled to compensatory

damages, attorey fees, and costs.
64. The conduct of Defendants vwas willful, wanton, malicious, oppressive, gross and
égrepious conduct, and evidence of Defendants® reckless disregard for the truth or falsity of the

representations of the content of the l;ook. As such, Plaintiff and Class Membexs are entitled to

—,

punitive damages.

COUNTY IV
(Promissory Estoppel)

65.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference all of the allegations set
forth above. .

66. As a rosult of the Defendants’ Deceptive Practioes, Plainfiffs and the Class
induced Plaintiffs and the Class Members to purcliase the Book. |

67. In reasonai;lc reliance upon Defendants’ Deceptive Practices, Plaintiff and Class
Members purchas.cd the Book a;ld associated media. |

68. Plaintiff's and Class Memﬁcrs‘ reliance upon Defendants’ Deceptive Practices
with respect to purchasing the book was reasonably foreseeable.

69.  Plaintiffs and Class Members relied upon Defendants’ Deceptive Practices o their
detriment, and as a direct and proximate result of the Deféndants’ Deceptive Practices, Plaintiff
and Class Members have suffered losses.-

70.  As a result of Defendants’ Deceptive Pragtices, Plaintiff and Class Members are

entitied to compensatory damages, atto}ney fees, and costs.

11
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COUNT YV
(Unjust Enrichment)

71.  Plintiff realleées and incorporates herein by reference all of ﬁle allegations set
forth above. a . . - -

72.  Plaintiff and Class Membcts have been charged and have paid for the book and
assoczlated mediaas a result of Defeudauts Deceptive Practlces

73. Defendants have been unjustly enriched at the expense of the Plamtlﬁ' and Class
Members by their deceptwe mxsleadmg and wrongful Defendants‘ Deceptive Practices.

74.  Plaintiff and Class Members are entitled to damages as a result of the unjust
enrichment of Defendants, including the return of all revenues obtained by Defendants as a result
of selling the book and associated media.

COUNT VI
(Violation of the Ohio Deceptive Trade Practices Act)

75.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference all of the allégations set
forth above.

76.  In the Defendants’ promotions and marketing of the Book, Defeudants have made
and continue to make decepfive, false and misleading statements conceming; the authcnnclty and
contents of the Book relating to the fact that the Book purports to be amn-ﬁctxonal recount of the
experiences of James Frey

7. 'Ihase false and mlsleadmg statements decelved Plamuﬁ’ and Class Members and
deceived a subsﬁnhal segment of the target audlcnce

78.  Defendants’ deception is material as it has influcaced purchasing decisions.

79..  Plaintff and Class Members have been damaged as a result of Defq;dams'

deceptions.

12
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80,  Defendants have violated the Okio Deceptive Trade Practices Act, OR C 4165 01 ef |
seq. |

8. Asa result of Defoadants® violation, Plainfiff and Class Members e entitled to
recover oon_xpensatorj damages, attorpeys' fees, and costs. ..

82.  As said violation was willful, wanton, and mahclous, Plaim_i& and Class Membess
are entitied fo puvitive damages.

_ 83.  Plaintiff and Class Members are likely to continue to be damaged by Defendants™

deceptive practices, and, accordingly, are entitled to an injunction against Defendants to prohibit
Defendants from continuing these decep;ive practices and the sale of the' Book and associated

media.

COUNT VIl
(Consumer Sales Practice Act)
84.  Plaintiff realleges and incotporates herein by reference alf of the allegations set forth
above.

85. Plamhﬁ‘, the Class and the Subclass Members are “person” engaged in a consumer

transaction or trade and commerce as defined by the Ohio Consumer Protection Act, ORC 1345, et -

seq.

8.  Defendants were eagaged aid continue to engage to promote, sell and market fhe
Book and associated media based upon false tq)mcn;aﬁons as to the content of the Book in order
to induce sales. This conduct constitutes unfair, unconscionable, and deceptive acts on the part of
Defendants in violatior of the Ohio Consumet Protection Act, ORC 1345, et seq.

87.  Plaintiff: the Class and the Suboiass Members have been damaged as a result of .

Defendants” yinfair, deceptive, and moonéciqnablc a;:ts or practloes Asa i&sult, Plaintiff, the Class

13
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and the Subclas Mcmbets are enutlcd to recover compensatory damages, treble damag&c,
attomeys® few, and costs.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF -
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff and membcns of the Class and the Subclass rc?pectﬁzlly réquest .’
that this Court grant the following relief the Defcndant. A
1) That this action may be maintained as a class action under Rule 23(a) and
(6)(2) and/or (b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and tha notice to the Class
and the Subelass be provided in compliance with Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(c)(3), and appointing
Plaintiff as the representatives of the Class and the Subclass and Plaintiff's oo;.msel as
counsel for the Clags and the Subclass;
2) Ocdering Defendant to immediately stop selling.the Book and other such
medi:'i renditions, at Defendant’s expense;
3) Awarding Plamtlﬁ" and members of the Class and the Subclass compensatory,
and punitive damages, and restitution, in an amount to be proven at trial;
4 AMng the Class and Subelass their costs and expenses in this lifigation,
including, but not limited to, expert fé:es and I-Gasonable attorneys’ fees;
5) That the Court award Plaintiff and members of the Class and the Subclass

such other and further relief as may be necessary and appropriate.

14
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Respectfully.submitted

- . Alan J. Statman (0012045)
Colleen M. Hegge (0038506) (of counsel)
2900 Chemed Center _
255 Bast Fifth Street
= Cincinnati, Ohio 45202
Phone: (513) 621-2666
Facsimile: (513) 621-4896
ajstatman@shselegal.com
chegge(@shselepal.com
ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF

Iratnbrr-mat e emeal -'-——d' ‘-w——‘—w—J
e

JURY DEMAND:

Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of the class she seeks to represent, hereby

respectfully requests a trial by jury.

Colleen M. Hegge

15
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RECEIPT NUMBER
53594
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
] FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN
SOUTHERN DIVISION
} GREGORY R. RIVARD, Individually, and on Case: 206-cv-10750
Behalf of All Qther Similarly Situated Consumers, g s?i gned To : Feikens, John
. eletral Judge: Komives, Paul 4
} Plaintiff, Assigt}. Date : 0212112006 @ 1049 am.
Description: cmp gregary . rivard v.
vs. random house (tam) '
RANDOM HOUSE, INC., a New York cotporation, oo - L
Defendant,
!
E. POWELL MILLER (P39487)
Milter Shea, P.C.
] Co-Counsel for Plaintiff
300 Miller Shea Building
1 950 West University Drive
| Rochester, MI 48307
(248) 841-2200
] MARK S. BAUMKEL (P27613)
Provizer & Phillips, P.C.
: Co-Counsel for Plaintifl
j 30200 Tclcgraph Rd., Ste. 200
Bingham Farms, MI 48025 -
\ (248) 642-0444
/

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND
PlaintifT Gregory R. Rivard, by his attomeys, Miller Shea, P.C. and Provizer & Phillips, P.C.,
l states as follows:
: JURISDICTION AND VENUE
i 1. Plaintiff is a Michigan resident.
2. -. Upan information and belief, Defendant, is a New York corporation, and regularly

and systematically conduct business in this State and in (his judicial district, and the events giving
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risc to this case Look place in this judicial district in the state of Michigan.
3 This is a class action in which the aggregate amount in controversy exceeds $75,000,
exclusive of interest and casts, and this Court has jurisdiction pursuant to diversity of citizenship as

deseribed in 28 USC § 1332(d)(2), and venue pursuan( to 28 USC § 1391(a). Subject matter

Jurisdiction is also prcmised on the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005, 28 US.C. § 1711.
CLASS ACTION AND FACTUAL ALLECGATIONS
4, Defendant has published, marketed, ad vertised, distributed, manufactured, and/or sold
s a truc autobiographical work of non-fiction concerning the actual real life factuai experiences of

the author a book entitied "A Million Lilile Pieces"

5. In truth, said book is largely a fictional non-factual account,
6. Defendant has distributed and sold millions of these books, including within

Michigun and throughout the United States, and plaintiff is onc of the millions of purchasers.

7. This is a class action suit which seeks recovery of damages and/or restitution in the
1 form of purchasc monies paid for purchase of said products by the named Plaintiff and the Plaintiff

class. The named Plaintiff has sustaincd damage (ypical of the proposed class.

i 8 Plaintiff brings this action on her own behalf and on hehalf of ali other persons
! © sumilady sitoated.
i

9. The class which Plaintiffs seek (o represent is composed, jointly or altcrnatively, of:

| all persons who, like the Plaintiff, bought one or mare copies of the above described product (the
I "Class") prior to public acknowledgment by Defendant that the book was largely fictional.
10.  The class 1s composed of millions ol persons, the joinder of whom is impracticable.

i The disposition of their claims in a class action will benefit both the partics and the Court.
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tl.  There are questions of fact and law which are common to all members of the class,
and which predominate over any individual issucs, including, inter alia, the foflowing:
() Whether the Defendant negligently p.ui:lishcd, manufactured, marketed,
advertised, distribuled, and/or sold a product that was not what it purported
to be-i.e. published, distributed and/or sold as a true factuatl account a Jargely
fictional story);
{b)  Whether Defendant has breached cxpress and implied warranties;

(c)  Whether Defendant has negligently and/or intentionally misreprescated
and/failed to adequately disclose material information about the true nature
of the product;

@ Whether the class has beeun damaged, and if so, the appropriate measure of
damages including the nature of injunclive and/or other equitable relief to
which the class is enfitled.

‘12, The above common issues of fact and law predominatc over any arguablc

! individualized issues; the principal common and identical issuc being the deceptive representations

described abave.

13.  Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims of the other members of the class because
; Plaintiffand all of the class members' damages arise from and were caused by having purchased the
subject product; and as a result, the evidence and the legal theorics regarding Defendant's alleged
wrongful conduct is identical for Plaintiff and all of the class members.
i 14.  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the class
H and Plaintiff has no interests which arc contrary to or in conflict with those of the class she secks to
tepresent. Plaintiff has retained competent counsel experienced in class action litigation to further
; ensure such protection and to prosecule this action vigorously.

] 15.  The prosecution of separatc actions by individual members of the class would create
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an increased risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individeal members of the
class, which would establish incompatible standards of conduct for the party opposing the class and
would lead to rei:étitious trials of the numerous common questions of facts and faw. Plaintiffknows
of no difficulty that will be encounitered in the management of this litigation that would preclude its
maintenance as a class action. As a result, a clags action is superior to other available methods for
the firir and efficient adjudication of this controversy.

16.  Proper and sufficient notice of this action may be provided to the cluss members
through notice published in appropriate publications and/or broadcast in appropriate media, posted
on Defendant’s internet web sites, and/or distributed by retailers of said product.

: 17. Absent representative action, it is unlikely that Plaintiff and other members of the
putative class could justify the time and expense of litigation which would then allow Defendant to
retain the proceeds of its ill-gotten gains,

18.  That at all times relevant herein, Deféndant published and distributed said product

for re-sale to retail purchasers such as Plaintif¥s.

19.  The product simply is not what it purports to be-i.c., it was published and sold us a
i true account when in fact it is fiction, and consumers deserve and legally are entitled to restitution.
COUNT

VIOLATION OF THE MICHIGAN CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT
(Michigan only)

20.  Plaintiffs re-allege alf preceding paragraphs.

2i.  Dcfendant violated the Michigan Consumer Protection Act, MCL § 445.901, ¢t. seq.,

by, inter alia:
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(a)  Representing that the goods have sponsorship, approval, characteristics,
] ingredients, uses, benefils, or quantities that thcy do not have. MCL §
445.903(c);

(v)  Failing to adequately reveal in advertising and/or at the time of purchase

various material facts, the omission of which {ends to mislead or deceive the
consurmer, and which facts could not reasonably be known by the consumec

in violation of MCL § 445.903(s), (bb) & (cc).
22.  In fact, the named Plaintiff, being typical reasonable purchascrs, would not have
purchased and/or consumed the praduct if the Defendant had cormplied with the MCPA.

73. A reasonable consumer would want to know by clear disclosure before purchasing

such product that the product is NOT, as mpresgnted, a true factual account of the author's
i experiences.
24.  As a rcsult of Defendant’s violation of the Michigan Consumer Protection Act,
Pl:;intiff and members of the class have incurred damages by purchasing the subject product.
] 25.  Turther, as a result of Defendant's conduct, Defendant has been and will be unjustly
! enriched by the receipt of millions of dollars in fees, profits and other mionies from the wrongful
distribution of the product to Michigan consumers which were sold through deccptive practices
which affirmatively and by omission mistcpresented the truc nature of the product.
COUNT H
BREACH OF EXPRESS WARRANTY (Michigan and National
26.  Plaintiff re-alleges all preceding paragraphs.

27.  Decfendant published and distributed said book accompanied by descriptions giving

the false impression that it had cerlain characteristics which it did not really have; e.g., that it was

a true account of the author's personal experiences when actually it wasa fictional story.
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98.  Plainiiff and members of the Plaintiflclass purchased a supposed true account which
was in reality 2 phony account and thereby sustained damage as ahove described as a proximate

result of said breach of watranty.

COUNT 1L

UNJUSTENRICHMENT/RESTITUTION/DISGORGEMENT

A e s e e T e e e e S T

{Michigan and National)
29,  Plaintiff incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs.

10.  Defendant has taken in millions of dollars from the publication and distribution of

said book, and currently now acknowledges and adruits on its website that the book was sold as true

hut really is phony.
] 31.  The namecd Plaintiff allcges that said moneys teccived by Defendant resulted from

wrongful conduct as described above, as to which it would be unfair and inequitablc for Defendant

to retain said ill-gotten gains.
. 32.  [fPlaintiff proves her allegations she and all members of the class would be entitled

{o full restitution of all purchase monies and/or compensation for the reduced value of the product

they received compared to the product represented by Defendant.

; RELIEF REQUESTED

: WHEREFORE, Plaintiff and members of the class of simulatly situated consumers request

the following relief:

A. Certification as a class action, together with such sub-classes as decmed appropriate

i
! and appointment of named Plaintiff and her counsel to represent the Class; Restitution of the

purchase price paid by named Plaintiff for the product purchased by the named Plaintiff and on
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behalf of the entire class of consuniers class wide notice and administrative cosls to be awarded

againsl Defendants;

B. Injunctive and/or equitable relief as deemed appropriate by the court, including but

not limited to disgorgement of ill-gotten gains into a common fund for the benefit of the plaintiff

class in such manner as to be determined by the court;

C. Interest, costs, and attorneys' fees (including actual attorney fecs pursuant to consumer

protection laws).

Dated: February 17, 2006

Respectfully submilled,

MILLER SHEA, P.C.

E. Powell Miller (P39487) M

950 West University Drive, Suite 300
Rochester, Michigan 48307
(248) 841-2200

MARK S. BAUMKEL (P27613)
Provizer & Phillips, P.C,
Co-Counsel for Plainti{T

30200 Telegraph Rd., Ste. 200
Bingham Farms, M1 48025
(248) 642-0444
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PURSUANT TO LOCAL RULE 83.11
Is this case that has been previously disconlinued or dismissed? YESY XN
If yes, give the following information:
Court:

Case No.:

Judge;

Other than stated above, are there any pending or previously discontinued

or dismissed companion cases in this or any other court, including state court?
(Companion caes are matters in which it appears substnatially similar evidence

will be offered or the same or reltated parties are preseat and the cases arise out

of the sarne transaction or accurrence.) YE

If yes, give the following information:

Court:

Case No.:

Judge:




